
City of Independence 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., May 11, 2015 

1 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE PLANNING COMMISSION 

MONDAY May 11, 2015 – 7:30 P.M. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence Planning Commission was called to 
order by Chair Phillips at 7:30 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Chair Phillips and Commissioners Gardner, Palmquist, Olson and Thompson 
STAFF: City Planner Kaltsas, Administrative Assistant Horner 
ABSENT: None 
VISITORS: Rose Lorsung, Liz Lund, Pete Bleth, Jan Gardner, Janet Weisberg, Lance Gyllebad 
 
3. Approval of Minutes from the April 13, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting. 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING: Hold Your Horses, a Minnesota non-profit, requests that the City consider the following 
actions for the property located at 1115 County Road 92, Independence, MN (PID No. 29-118-24-41-0002): 
 

a. An amendment to the Conditional Use Permit to allow an Animal Assisted Therapy (AAT) operation on 
the subject property.   

 
Kaltsas stated that Hold Your Horses presented for a CUP on a different property on County Road 6 in 2013. They 
are an animal assisted therapy organization that utilizes both horses and dogs. The CUP was approved in 2013 and 
they have been operating out of that other location for the past couple of years. The lease is not going to be renewed 
at that location as the owner is going to use the barn now. They have been offered 1115 County Road 92 as an 
alternative site for them. They have approached the City to see what they need to do to amend the CUP. The City has 
recommended it is amended and listed as an animal assisted therapy CUP and not just a riding stable. 
 
Kaltsas stated the property is zoned agriculture and there is a CUP on the property already that allows for 41 horses 
to be boarded. There are existing CUP conditions for the property such as hours of operation, no horse shows, 
training or events without prior written approval from the City etc. The applicant is requesting the hours of operation 
be changed to include Monday and run from 9-6 p.m. These are actually fewer hours than they are already approved 
for under the current CUP. The caveat would be that if they have a big event that would have to approved by the City 
under a large assembly permit. 
 
Kaltsas stated that the applicant has previously provided and met the conditions spelled out in the ordinance. There 
have been no concerns or complaints regarding this operation in the past years. 
 
Thompson and Phillips asked for clarification around the commercial use parameters and how they would mesh with 
an amended CUP. Kaltsas stated it would be not limiting and that these two CUP’s would go hand in hand. 
 
Gardner asked if these were two stand-alone CUP’s and Kaltsas stated they were not. Kaltsas stated they would be 
blending the language and it would be one CUP with the new additions. Phillips asked what happens to the existing 
CUP on County Road 6. Kaltsas stated the City has a process where the CUP’s are reviewed and this one has already 
been noted for possible revocation. 
 
Public Hearing Opened 
 
The Applicant stated she was available to answer any questions. There were no questions. 
 
Motion by Gardner, second by Olson to close the Public Hearing. 



City of Independence 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., May 11, 2015 

2 

 
Public Hearing Closed 
 
Motion to approve the CUP for 1115 County Road 92 N for Animal Assisted Therapy subject to the 
recommendations by Staff. Motion by Palmquist, second by Olson. Ayes: Phillips, Gardner, Olson, Palmquist 
and Thompson. Nays: None. Motion approved. 
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARING: Heidi Kelly (Applicant) and John Fleischhacker (Owner) request that the City consider 

the following actions for the property located at 810 Copeland Road, Independence, MN (PID No. 29-118-
24-33-0001): 

 
a. A Conditional Use Permit to allow a commercial riding stable on the subject property.   

 
Kaltsas stated the property is zoned agricultural and is about 21 acres. He said it is located N of County Road 6 near 
Pioneer Creek. The property has been known as Ashland Stables. In 2013 the City did a review of all CUP’s and this 
location was noted as vacant and locked up. The City revoked the CUP after it was determined it was not being 
utilized and the proper notification was given. The property is now up for sale and the potential buyer wants to know 
if the CUP can be re-instated for the property.  
 
Kaltsas stated there is a separate CUP for a bunkhouse on the property that is not associated with the riding stable 
CUP. He stated that the bunkhouse CUP was still valid and not revoked when the other CUP was. Kaltsas stated the 
applicant was not aware the CUP was revoked and would like a new CUP for a riding stable again that would mirror 
what was originally in place for the property. 
 
Kaltsas stated there are conditions that are associated with the new CUP that are addressed in the staff report. 
Essentially, he said that the primary exception to the original CUP is that 39 horses were allowed based on other 
neighboring acreages they were renting or buying. The applicant has now requested an allowance for 21 horses. City 
Ordinance allows for 20. Historically, Kaltsas stated that this property was built as a commercial riding stable. The 
City does not have any known complaints on the property. Kaltsas stated the other conditions outlined in the staff 
report are similar to other stable CUP’s. There are a couple unique provisions including dust control, manure 
management, traffic control, etc.  
 
Kaltsas stated that the City would recommend adopting the conditions with the exception of the number of horses. 
 
Phillips asked if the aerial photo shown on the staff report outlined in green on page 2 is actually 21 acres. Kaltsas 
stated that no that the City has wetland included and there are approximately 14 acres of upland. Phillips asked if the 
driveway on the North was the property line and Kaltsas stated that was correct. 
 
Public Hearing Open 
 
Rose Lorsung asked about condition No. 7 in the last sentence about landscaping. She wanted to know if that was 
stating that, they needed to do additional landscaping as it was vague. Kaltsas stated that it meant just maintain what 
was there and that this was an item from the 1997 conditions to this new document. Phillips asked what Lorsung 
would like it to say. Lorsung said she would like it to stay the same as they do not intend doing any additional 
landscaping. 
 
Lorsung asked about No. 16 dust control. Gardner asked if they were doing it now and Kaltsas stated nothing now. 
Phillips stated that Copeland Road is done all the way up. Kaltsas stated he could work on the wording of the dust 
control statement so it is clearer. 
 
Lorsung asked about No. 17. What is defined as special permission? Kaltsas stated the condition was already on 
there and in the past, there would be separate provisions for boarding and training. Kaltsas stated No. 9 could be 
changed to encompass shows, training and special events. Kaltsas stated in the wording we are trying to capture 



City of Independence 
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
7:30 p.m., May 11, 2015 

3 

larger events and define that, not the normal lessons and training that is provided. Palmquist noted it could be stated 
as non-boarders greater than five require special permission. 
 
Kaltsas reviewed and stated that No. 7 would be changed to maintain existing landscaping. No. 16 dust control 
would be revised to state if the City no longer does dust control than the client will do it. No. 17 will say training 
clinics and No. 9 will be amended to include special events. 
 
Motion by Gardner, second by Olson to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Public Hearing Closed 
 
Gardner asked what happens to the bunkhouse CUP. Kaltsas stated it was a separate CUP and is still in effect. 
 
Motion to approve the CUP for 810 Copeland Road subject to recommendations in staff report to modify 
No.’s 6, 7,9,16 and 17. Motion by Palmquist, second by Thompson. Ayes: Phillips, Gardner, Olson, Palmquist 
and Thompson. Nays: None. Motion approved. 
 
The City Council will review these two CUP’s at the May 26, 2015 City Council Meeting. 
 
6. Letter to City Council 
 
Palmquist handed out a letter that was drafted proposing regarding the enforcement of CUP’s. Olson stated he 
thought it was a good letter. Kaltsas stated Satek is waiting on landscaping for the cell tower on Townline as an 
example. Kaltsas stated this has to be done before Satek is able to final it. Kaltsas gave a couple more examples of 
why items may be outstanding due to permits not being pulled and landscaping never being done, etc. Thompson 
stated they are asking to undertake the process and follow-up. Palmquist stated he was fine with the letter as written. 
Gardner stated if they need a certificate of occupancy that Satek should do that. 
 
Motion to approve the letter to be sent to the City Council. Motion by Olson, second by Thompson. Ayes: 
Gardner, Olson, Palmquist and Thompson. Nays: None. Motion approved. 
 
7. Upcoming Planning Commission Agendas 
 
Kaltsas stated that there are things upcoming and the date of the deadline for this meeting the City received three 
applications. Two were heard tonight and one was applied for and then withdrawn. Kaltsas stated those ordinances 
would be coming back and the Council wants Planning to look at the Large Assembly Ordinance as well and how 
that would relate to event centers. Kaltsas said Council wants to know what are the rules that allow event centers. 
Phillips asked if a hearing on those ordinances can be combined or if it is all separate. Kaltsas stated they could have 
a hearing on all of them. Phillips stated he would like to add a discussion on how our Ordinances include and 
exclude  wetlands. He thought they should review overall right by acre especially as it pertains to animals.  
 
Gardner asked if there was a rodeo update. Kaltsas stated it would have to be resolved in June. Gardner stated they 
are using the front as a parking lot. Kaltsas stated they have pictures and a letter drawn up. He said they could not 
use it for what they are using it for. 
 
8. Open/ Misc. 
 
9. Adjourn 
 
Motion by Olson, second by Thompson to adjourn the meeting at 8:20 p.m.  Ayes: Gardner, Olson, Palmquist 
and Thompson. Nays: None. Absent: None. Motion declared carried. 

 


